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CONSENT ORDER

The licensing authority filed a complaint. Section 621.045, RSMo 2000, gives usjurisdiction.

On September 19, 2006, the parties filed a “Joint Motion for Consent Order, Joint Stipulation of
Facts, Waiver of Hearings Before the Administrative Hearing Commission and the State Board of
Embalmers and Funeral Directors, and Disciplinary Order With Joint Stipulated Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law.” Our review of the document shows that the parties have stipulated to certain facts
and waived their right to.a hearing before us. Because the parties have agreed to these facts, we
incorporate them into this order and.adopt them as stipulated. Buckner v. Buckner, 912 S.W. 2d 65, 70
(Mo. App., W.D. 1995). We conclude that the licensee is subject to discipline under § 331. 121.2(2), (4),
(5) and (13), RSMo02000. We incorporate the parties’ proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law-
into this Consent Order. -We certify the record to the licensing agency under § 621.110, RSMo 2000.’

The only issue before this Commission is whether the stipulated conduct constitutes cause to
discipline the license. . The appropriate disciplinary action is not within our power to decide; that is
subject to the licensing authority’s decision or the parties’ agreement. Section 621.110, RSMo 2000.

No statute authorizes us to determine whether the agency has complied with the provisions of
section 621.045.3:RSMo'2000. We have no power to superintend agency compliance with statutory
procedures. Missouri Health Facilities Review Comm. v. Administrative Hearing Comm’n, 700 S.W.

2d 445, 450 (Mo. banc-1985). Therefore, we do not determme whether the agency complied with such
procedures.

SO ORDERED on September 20,.2006. . - ! PN
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. BEFORE THE
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING COMMISSION
STATE OF MISSOURI

STATE BOARD OF EMBALMERS
AND FUNERAL DIRECTORS,

Petitioner,
Case No. 06-0787 EM

V.

RITA K. COMPTON,

Respondent.

JOINT MOTION FOR CONSENT ORDER, JOINT STIPULATION OF FACTS,
" WAIVER OF HEARINGS BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING
COMMISSION AND THE STATE BOARD OF EMBALMERS AND FUNERAL
DIRECTORS, AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER WITH JOINT STIPULATED
- z FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Pursuant to the rules governing practice and procedure before the Administrative
Hearing Commission, 1 CSR 15-3.440(3), and pursuant to the ferms of Section 536.060,
RSMo', as it is made applicable to the Administrative Hearing Commission by
Section 621.135, RSMO, the parties herein move for a Consent Order énd waive the right
to a hearing in the above-styled case by the Administrative Hearing Commission (the

“Commission”) under Section 621.110, RSMo, and hereby jointly stipulate to the facts

'All statutory references are to the Revised Statutes of Missouri 2000, as
supplemented, unless otherwise indicated.
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and consent to finding cause for discipline against the funeral director license number
006049 held by Rita K. Compton (“Compton” or “Licensee”) pursuant to the stipulations
set forth below.

Licensee acknowledges that she understands the various rights and privileges
afforded her by law, including the right to a hearing of the charges against her; the right to
~ appear and be represented by legal counsel; the right to have all charges against her |
proven upon the record by competent and substantial evidence; the right to cross-examine
any witnesses appearing at the hearing against hér; the right to present evidence on her
behalf at the hearing; the right to a decision upon the record by a fair and impartial
a.dministrative hearing commissioner concerning the pending complaint; the right to a
ruling on questions of law by the Administrative Hearing Commission; the right to séek
attorney's fees and expenses incurred in defending this action; the right to a disciplinary
hearing before the State Board of Embalmers and Funeral Directoré (the “Board”) at
which she would have the opportunity to present evidence in mitigation of discipline; and
the right to obtain judicial review of the decisions of the Administrative Hearing
Commission and the Board. Being aware of these rights provided them by operation of
law, Licensee knowingly and voluntarily waives each and every one of these rights and
freely enter into th’is “Joint Motion for Consent Order, Joint Stipulation of Facts, Waiver
of Hearings Before the Administrative Hearing Commission and the State Board of

Embalmers and Funeral Directors, and Disciplinary Order with Joint Stipulated Findings
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of Fact and Conclusions of Law” (hereinafter “Joint Stipulation™) and agrees to abide by
the terms of this document as they pertain to her.

Licensee'aéknowledges that she was served on or about with a copy of the formal
Complaint filed with the Commission. The Commission served this Complaint on
Compton, via certified mail, sent on June 1, 2006.

For the purpose of settling this dispute, Licensee stipulates that the factual
allegations contained in this Joint Stipulation are true and stipulate with the Board that
funeral director license nnmber 006049 is subject to discipline by the Board as set out in
this Joint Stipulation in .accordance with the provisions of Chapters 333 and 436, RSMo.

Licensee agrees that this Joint Stipulation does not bind the Board or restrict the
remedies available to it concerning any other violation(s) of Chapters 333 or 436, RSMo,
committed by Licenseé and which are not specifically mentioned in this Joint Stipulation.

The parties stipulate and agree that this document is the joint work product of the
parties. The parties stipulate and agree that this document embodies the entire Joint
Stipulation and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter contained
herein. The parties declare and represent that no promise, inducement, or agreement not
herein expressed has been made. Licensee has not been represented by counsel in this
matter.

Based upon the foregoing, the Board and Compton jointly stipulate to the

following findings of fact and conclusions of law and request the Commission adopt the




Joint Stipulated Findings of Fact and Joint Stipulated Conclusions of Law as the

Commission’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.

Stipulafed Findings of F act‘

1. Petitioner, the State Board of Embalmers and Funeral Directors, is an
agency of the State of Missouri, established and existing pursuant to Section 333.151,
RSMo, 20007, for the purpose of administering and enforcing Chapter 333 and portions of
Chapter 436, RSMo, and the regulations adopted thereunder.

2. Rita K. Compton is a natural person who vholds funeral director license
number 006049. Said license is and was, at all relevant times, current and active.

3. On or about February 23, 2006, Compton entered her plea of guilty to two
counts of mail fraud in violation of 18 USC Sections 1341 and 1342 in the case of United
States of America v. Rita Kay Compton, Case number 4:06CR20 RWS in the United
States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri (the “Mail Fraud Judgment’_’).l

4. On May 11, 2006, the Court imposed judgment including a sentence of 12
months and a day and ordered Compton to pay restitution in the amount of $148,821 plus
a $200 special assesément.

5. The Mail Fraud Judgment occurred after entry of an indictment filed on

January 12, 2005 which found that while employed at the Dietrich - Mothershead Funeral

2 All statutory references are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri, as supplemented,
unless otherwise noted.
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Home, Inc as bookkeeper and accounts payable clerk, Compton embezzled apprbximately

$148,000 from the funeral home for her own use.

Joint Stipulated Conclusions of Law

6. . Jurisdiction and venue are proper before the Administrative Hearing
Commission (the “Commission”) pursuant to Section 333.121.2, RSMo. Section
333.121.2, RSMo, states, in relevant portion, as follows:

2. The board may cause a complaint to be filed with
the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter
621, RSMo, against any holder of any certificate of
registration or authority, permit or license required by this
chapter or any person who has failed to renew or has
surrendered his certificate of registration or authority, permit
or license for any one or any combination of the following
causes:

- (2) The person has been finally adjudicated and found guilty,
or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal
prosecution under the laws of any state or of the United
States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications,
functions or duties of any profession licensed or regulated
under this chapter, for any offense an essential element of
which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any
offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is
imposed;

- (4) Obtaining or 'attempting to obtain any fee, charge, tuition
or other compensation by fraud, deception or
misrepresentation;




(5) Incompetency, misconduct, gross negligence, fraud,
misrepresentation or dishonesty in the performance of the
functions or duties of any profession licensed or regulated by
this chapter;

(13) Violation of any professional trust or confidence;

7. Compton plead guilty to 18 USC Section 1341 which provides:
1341. Frauds and swindles

Whoever, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to
defraud, or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent
pretenses, representations, or promises, or to sell, dispose of, loan,

- exchange, alter, give away, distribute, supply, or furnish or procure for
unlawful use any counterfeit or spurious coin, obligation, security, or other
article, or anything represented to be or intimated or held out to be such
counterfeit or spurious article, for the purpose of executing such scheme or
artifice or attempting so to do, places in any post office or authorized
depository for mail matter, any matter or thing whatever to be sent or
delivered by the Postal Service, or deposits or causes to be deposited any
matter or thing whatever to be sent or delivered by any private or
commercial interstate carrier, or takes or receives therefrom, any such
matter or thing, or knowingly causes to be delivered by mail or such carrier
according to the direction thereon, or at the place at which it is directed to
be delivered by the person to whom it is addressed, any such matter or
thing, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or
both. If the violation affects a financial institution, such person shall be
fined not more than $1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 30 years, or
both.




8. Compton plead guilty to 18 USC Section 1342 which provides:

1342. Fictitious name or address

- Whoever, for the purpose of conducting, promoting, or carrying on by

means of the Postal Service, any scheme or device mentioned in section

1341 of this title or any other unlawful business, uses or assumes, or

requests to be addressed by, any fictitious, false, or assumed title, name, or

address or name other than his own proper name, or takes or receives from

any post office or authorized depository of mail matter, any letter, postal

card, package, or other mail matter addressed to any such fictitious, false, or

assumed title, name, or address, or name other than his own proper name,

shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than five years, or

both.

9. There is cause to discipline pursuant to Section 333.121.2(2), RSMo, in that
Compton plead guilty to 1) offenses reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or
duties of being a funeral directdr; 2) offenses an essential element of which is fraud,
dishonesty or an act of violence; and 3) offenses involving moral turpitude.

10.  There is cause to discipline pursuant to Section 333.121.2(4), RSMo, in that
the conduct to which Compton admitted when she plead guilty consisted of obtaining a.
fee, charge or other compensation by fraud, deception or misrepresentation.

. 11.  There is cause to discipline pursuant to Section 333.121.2(5), RSMo, in that
the conduct to which Compton admitted when she plead guilty showed incompetency,

misconduct, gross negligence, fraud, misrepresentation or dishonesty in the performance

of her duties as a funeral director.




12.  There is cause to discipline pursuant to Section 333.121.2(13), RSMo, in
that the conduct to which Cofnpton admitted when she plead guilty violated professional
trust and confidence.

13. There is cause to discipline the funeral director license held by Compton
pursuant to Sections 333.121.2 (2), (4), (5), and (13), RSMo.

JOINT AGREED DISCIPLINARY ORDER

Bésed upon the foregoing, the parties mutually agree and stipulate that the
- following shall constitute the disciplinary order entered by the Board in this matter under
the authority of Sections 621.110 and 333.121.3, RSMo. This disciplinary order will be
effective immediately upon the issuance of the order of the Administrative Hearing
| Commission finding cause to discipline the funeral director license held by Compton |

without further action by any party.

14. Revocation of funeral director license. Funeral director license number
.006049 held by Compton is hereby REVOKED.
15. Each.pany agrees to pay all their own fees and expenses incurred as a result
of this case and any.ensuing litigation. -
16.  The parties to this Joint Stipulation understand that the Board will maintain
| the Joint Stipulation as an open and public record as provided in Chapters 333, 436, 610

and 620, RSMo.




17.  The terms of this Joint Stipulation afe contractual, legaHy enforceable and
binding, not merely recital. Except as otherwise continued herein, neither this Joint
Stipulation nor any of its provisions may be changed, revised, discharged, or terminated
except by an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom the enforcement of
the change, waiver, discharge, or termination is sought.

18. Licensee, together with her heirs, assigns, partners, shareholders, owners,
- agents, employees, representatives and attorneys, do hereby waive, release, acquit and
forever discharge the Board, its respective members, employees, agents, and attorneys,
including former mémbers, employees, agents, and attorneys, of, or from, any liability,
claim, actions, causes of action, fees, cosfs, expenses, and compensation, including, but
not limited to, any claims for attorney’s fees and expenses, whether or not now known or
contemplated, including, but not limited to, any claims pursuant to Section 536.087,
RSMo, or any claim arising under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983, which may be based upon,
arise out of, or relate to any of the matters raised in this case, its settlement or from the
negotiation or execution of its settlement. Licensee acknowledges that this paragraph is
severable from the remaining portions of this Joint Stipulation in that it survives in
perpetuity even in the event that any court or administrative tribunal deems this Joint

Stipulation or any portion thereof void or unenforceable.




19.  In consideration of the foregoing, the parties consent to the termination of

any further proceedings based upon the facts set forth herein.

LICENSEE

Rita K. Compton

W/A

Attorney for Licensee
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STATE BOARD OF EMBALMERS
AND FUNERAL DIRECTORS

Loy 7 )9/94-
Becky D Date

Executive Director

JEREMIAH W. (JAY) NIXON
Attorgey General
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Sharén K. Euler Date
Assistant Attorney General
Missouri Bar No. 42950

PennTower Office Center
3100 Broadway, Suite 609
Kansas City, MO 64111

Telephone: 816-889-5048
Telefax: 816-889-5006

Attorneys for Petitioner,
State Board of Embalmers and
Funeral Directors
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